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VISION AND MISSION

VISION

Is to achieve and then remain as the most progressive and profitable
Company offering a wide range of quality products and service provider

in terms of industry standards and stakeholders interest.

MISSION

The Company shall achieve its mission through a continuous process of

having sourced, developed, implemented and managed the best leading

edge technology, industry best practice, human resource and innovative
of superior products, performance and service quality that fully meet
the needs of our customers, better returns to our stakeholders and a

better quality of life to the employees.
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REVIEW REPORT BY THE CHAIRMAN

I would like to take this opportunity to express my views in the enclosed Chairman Review
Report for the year ended June 30, 2023, required under the provisions of section 192(4) of
the Companies Act, 2017 on the overall performance and effectiveness of the board of
International Knitwear Limited “Board” in achieving its objectives.

The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the Board’s overall performance and
effectiveness are measured and bench marked against expectations in the context of
objectives set for the Company.

For the financial year ending June 30, 2023, the Board’s overall performance and
effectiveness have been assessed as satisfactory. That performance is based on an
evaluation of integral components, including vision, mission, and values;engagement in
strategic planning; formulation of policies;monitoring the organization’s business activities;
monitoring financial resource management; effective fiscal oversight;equitable treatment of
all employees and efficiency in carrying out the Board’s business. | would also like to extend
my acknowledgment and gratefulness to the Board for its positive contribution and
continuous commitment.

The Board is composed of members with diverse backgrounds having relevant knowledge,
skills, and experience inthe textile business. Its appropriate balance of two executives, two
non-executives, and three independent directors including one female director ensures its
independence and empowerment.

The Board of Directors of your Company received agendas and supporting written material
including follow-up materials in sufficient time before the board and its committee
meetings. The board meets frequently enough to adequately discharge its responsibilities.
The non-executive and independent directors are equally involved in important decisions.

I would like to thank all our shareholders, customers, bankers, and employees for their trust
and support during the year. | would also like to thank the Board members, CEO, and his
team for their dedication and hard work.

Karachi WASEEM SHAFI
September 27,2023 Chairman
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors of International Knitwear Limited takes pleasure in presenting this report
together with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Financial Performance at a Glance

Operating Results 2023 2022 Increase/(Decrease)
Rupees Rupees Percentage

Net sales 611,489,441 670,262,761 (8.77%)

Gross profit 80,705,714 59,741,166 35.09%

Profit before taxation 37,130,961 27,585,414 34.06%

Profit after taxation 22,073,906 22,084,733 -

Net Earnings per share 2.28 2.28 -

Financial highlights for the year ended June 30, 2023, are summarized below:

In the year ending June 30, 2023, the Company has achieved Net sales ofRs. 611.48 million as
compared to Rs.670.26 million same period last year (SPLY). Sales recorded a decrease of Rs. 58.77
million in the current year as compared to sales in the previous year ended 30, June 2022.

The gross profit of the Company was Rs. 80.70 million in the current year as compared to the gross
profit of Rs. 59.74 million in the last year. Profit before taxation was37.13million as compared to
Rs. 27.58 million for the corresponding period last year.

As a result of these factors, Net profit after tax for the year shows Rs. 22.07 million as compared to
net profit of Rs.22.08 million SPLY. Earnings per share was Rs.2.28 per share compared to the same
period last year 2022: Rs. 2.28.

Business Overview

Your company managed to secure revenues and profitability amidst tough operating conditions
such as dwindling economic and political situation, unprecedented inflation, and a rise in
direct/indirect taxes.

Despite the above-mentioned challenges, revenue and profit were maintained by the combination
of price, volume, and favorable product mix changes.

These challenging circumstances have posed serious difficulties for the sustainable growth of the
Industry and harmed both the international and domestic businesses which adversely impacted
the Company's top and bottom lines. During the year the export sales recorded Rs.284.00 million
as compared to Rs.277.19 million of SPLY. Similarly, the local sales recorded Rs.327.48 million as
compared to Rs. 393.06 million in the corresponding period of last year.

During the year the Company’s financial cost increased due to an increase in the policy rate by the
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), a higher markup rate for export-related financing schemes, and
running finance costs.
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Earnings per share

Earnings per share after taxation wereRs. 2.28 ascompared to Rs. 2.28 in last year's earnings for
the shareholders.

Investment

The Company also generates a significant portion of its investment income from sustainable
sources such as dividends and capital gain ensuring regular income. The investment portfolio is
diversified amongst various sectors mainly focusing on blue-chipscrip having high dividend yields /
paying bonuses and also future growth prospects and maintaininga balance between fixed-income
securities and equities.

Other income including dividend income during the year was Rs. 8.07 million against Rs. 4.06
million in the corresponding period last year.

Capital Expenditure

The Company during the year made a capital investment of Rs.14.84 million to expand
manufacturing capacity, enhance productivity, and improve plant efficiency.

Dividend

Bearing in mind our strategic investment, business need for future working capital requirement,
and the Company’s ability to generate cash, the Board of Directors is vleased to propose a final
cashdividendat10% i.e.,Rs .1.00 Per shareforthe yearended June 30, 2023.

Future Outlook

The textile industry is under pressure due to the global recession and high inflation. The domestic
environment in the form of political uncertainty as well as the high cost of doing business including
high financial costs and increased energy prices is creating tremendous pressure. Substantial
damage to the cotton crop which is being substituted with expensive imports is also making the
industry uncompetitive.

Regardless of challenges, your management like always, is more determined to make the best
efforts to make the Company more resilient, growing on sustainable footings, and coming up to
the expectations of all stakeholders.

Material Changes
No material changes orcommitments affecting the financial position of the Company have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of the report.

Corporate Environment, Health & Social Responsibility

We strongly believe in maintaining the highest standards in health, safety, and environment (HSE)
to ensure the well-being of the people who work with us as well as of the communities where we
operate.Our focus remains on improving all aspects of safety, especially with regard to the safety,
production, delivery, storage, and handling of the materials. The company is committed to
ensuring environmental preservation and sustainability.

Materiality Approach

Determining materiality levels is subjective and the methodology varies from one organization to
the other. Authorization for transactions and delegation of powers have been clearly defined and
documented through formalized processes in the Company. The Company has an approved
materiality policy, which is reviewed annually to confirm its relevance.

6
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

In compliance with the provisions of the listing regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange, The
Board members are pleased to place the following statements on record:

The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows, and changes inequity;

The Company maintains proper books of accounts;

The Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board,;

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of
financial statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment;

International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, are followed in the
preparation of financial statements.

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored,;

There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern;

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as
detailed in the listing regulations.

Summary of key operational and financial data for the last six years is shown on page
No.12.

Information about taxes and levies is given in the notes to and forming part of financial
statements.

The valuation of investment made by the staff retirement Provident Fund (un-audited) as
at June 30,2023 was Rs.9,624,059.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors and its Committees
COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

In line with the requirements of the Regulations, the Company encourages representation of
independent and non-executive directors, as well as gender diversity on its Board. The current
composition of the Board is as follows:

TOTAL NUMBER OF DIRECTORS:
(a) Male: 6

(b) Female: 1

COMPOSITION:

i. Independent Directors: 3
ii. Non-Executive Directors: 2
iii. Executive Directors: 2

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
Audit Committee

1 Khalid Jamil Siddiqi Chairman
2 Abdullah Ahsan Saleem Member
3 Saleha Majid Member
Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
1 Abdullah Ahsan Saleem Chairman
2 Muhammad Shafi Member
3 Saleha Majid Member
Risk Management Committee

1 Naeem Shafi Chairman
2 Javed Khan Member
3 Khalid Jamil Siddiqi Member
Nomination Committee

1 Khalid Jamil Siddiqi Chairman
2 Waseem Shafi Member
3 Naeem Shafi Member

8
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Meeting of the Board and its Committees

During the year, four meetings of Board of Directors (BOD), four meetings of Audit Committee (AC)
and one meeting of Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HRRC) were held. The
attendance of the Directors and the number of their directorship in listed companies, including
International Knitwear Limited, is as follows:

Executive | Committee Attendance
Sr. | Name of Directors Directorship Status | Directors | Members
No AC | HRR | BOD | AC |HRR
. C C
1 | Mr. Waseem Shafi 1 Re-elected No - - 2/4 |- -
w.e.f
27-10-2021
2 | Mr. Naeem Shafi 2 Re-elected Yes - - 3/4 |- -
w.e.f
27-10-2021
3 | Mr. Javed Khan 1 Re-elected Yes - - 4/4 |- -
w.e.f
27-10-2021
4 | Mr.Khalid Jamil 1 Appointed | No |+ 22 22 |-
Siddiqi on
27-10-2022
5 | Mr. Abdullah Ahsan 1 Appointed | No [V | 0/0 |0/0 |0/0
Saleem on
19-04-2023
6 | Ms.Saleha Majid 1 Re-elected | No [V |V 3/4 |34 |11
w.e.f
27-10-2021
7 | Mr.Muhammad 1 Re-elected No - v 2/4 |- 1/1
Shafi w.e.f
27-10-2021
8 | Mr. Arshad Ahmed 1 Resign No |V |V /1 |11 |11
on
27-10-2022
9 | Mr.Mudassir Habib 1 Resign No [V |- 3/3 |33 |-
Khan on
11-04-2023
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Management Committee

The Management Committee comprises senior management headed by the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO), who ensures that a proper system is developed and implemented across the Company that
enables swift and appropriate decision-making. It acts in an advisory capacity to the CEO at the
operating level, providing recommendations relating to business and other corporate affairs. It is
responsible for reviewing and forwarding long-term plans, capital and expense budget
development, and stewardship of business plans. The Committee is organized on a functional basis
and meets monthly to review the performance of each function against set targets. CEO also
ensures that all decisions and directions given by the Board are properly communicated and
implemented.

Evaluation Criteria for the Board

Apart from their mandatory job requirements, the performance of the Board of our Company is

evaluated regularly along the following parameters, both at individual and team levels.

. Effectiveness in bringing in a mix of gender, talents, skills and philosophical perspectives;

. Integrity, credibility, trustworthiness and active participation of members;

. Follow-up and review of annual targets set by the management;

. Ability to provide guidance and direction to the Company;

. Ability to identify aspects of the organization’s performance requiring action;

. Review of succession planning of management;

. Ability to assess and understand the risk exposures of the Company;

. Contribution and interest in regard to improving health safety and environment, employment
and other policies and practices in the Company; and

9. Safeguarding the Company against unnecessary litigation and reputational risk.

Performance Evaluation of the Board

The overall performance of the Board measured on the basis of the above-mentioned parameters

for the year was satisfactory. A separate report by the Chairman on Board’s overall performance,

as required under section 192 of the Companies Act, 2017 is included in this Annual Report.

00N A WN

Director’s Remuneration

The Board of Directors has approved the Directors’ Remuneration Policy. The main features of the

policy are as follows:

e The Company shall not pay remuneration to its non-executive directors including Independent
directors except for meeting fee for attending meetings of the Board and its Committees.

e The Company will reimburse or incur expenses of traveling and accommodation of Directors in
relation to attending meetings of the Board and its Committees.

e The Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors
from time to time.

10
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Pattern of Shareholding

A statement showing a pattern of shareholdings of the Company and additional information as at
June 30, 2023, is included in the report.

Auditors

The present Auditors M/s RSM Avais Hyder Liaguat Nauman Chartered Accountants, retire and
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment. The Board of Directors endorses the
recommendation of the Audit Committee for their reappointment as auditors of the Company for
the financial year ending June 30, 2024.

Subsequent Events

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report.
Directors’ Training Program

Two Directors have attended the Directors Training Program and two have more than 25 years of
experience on the Board of listed companies, therefore are exempt from the Directors Training
Program.The Company has plans to conduct required training of director during the next fiscal
year. All Directors are fully conversant with their duties and responsibilities as Directors of corporate
bodies.

Acknowledgment

The Management would like to place on record its appreciation for the support of Board of
Directors, regulatory authorities, shareholders, customers, financial institutions, suppliers and
dedication & hard work of the Staff and Workers.

For and on behalf of the Board

T A

JAVED KHAN NAEEM SHAFI
Karachi: September 27,2023 Director Chief Executive
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SUMMARY OF KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA OF
SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE

Below is a summary of key operating and financial results for six years and includes the financial
results for the year under review:

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
......... 000’

ASSETS EMPLOYED
Property, plant and

60,017 53,236 35,983 35,942 32,134 25,728
equipment
Intangible assets - - - - - -
Long-term investments 20,394 20,867 16,979 14,478 17,769 42,052
Long-term deposits 1,500 2,052 2,052 2,052 2,052 1,500
Short-term investments 20,006 17,439 16,781 8,506 4,177 26,228
Net current assets 75,075 67,514 71,626 72,410 70,898 65,192
Total assets employed 176,992 161,108 143,421 133,388 127,030 160,700
FINANCED BY
Issued, subscribed and

96,750 96,750 96,750 96,750 96,750 96,750
paid-up capital
Reserve and un-

60,035 45,218 23,133 28,020 28,763 23,362
appropriated profit
Gain / (Loss) on
revaluation of 1,521 1,945 905 (982) (4,003) 14,360
investments
Shareholder's equity 158,306 143,913 120,788 123,788 121,509 134,473
Long term and deferred

- 642 6,693 12,723 2,048 -

liabilities
Total capital employed 158,306 144,555 127,481 136,511 123,557 134,473
Turnover 611,489 670,262 488,090 537,457 451,098 393,230
Profit before tax 37,130 27,585 6,620 16,865 14,748 17,337
Profit /(loss) after tax 22,073 22,084 (50) 7,735 10,237 13,404
Earnings/(loss) per share 2.28 2.28 (0.01) 0.80 1.06 1.39
Return on turnover 3.6% 3.2% (0.10%) 1.4% 2.3% 3.4%
Return on capital

13.94% 15.2% (0.04%) 5.6% 8.3% 8.3%
employed
Dividend
Cash (%) 10% 7.5% 0% 5% 5% 5%
Stock (%) 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

12
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RSM Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT Chartered Accountants
TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED 407, Progressive Plaza, Beaumont Road
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements Karachi, 7553 Pakisan

T:+92(21) 35655975-6
F:+92(21)3565-5977

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of InternationalKnitwear Limited (the Company), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profit or loss, thestatement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes
in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting
and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company’s affairs
as at June 30, 2023 and of the profit and comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants ofPakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

13
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Chartered Accountants
TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Following are the key audit matters:

S. No. Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit
1. | Revenue Our audit procedures included the following:
(Refer note 21to the financial statements) -Obtained an understanding of the process relating to

recognition of revenue and testing the design,
The Company generates revenue from sale | implementation and operating effectiveness of key
to export as well as local customers. We | internal controls.

considered revenue recognition as key audit
matter as it is one of the key performance | -Performed test of details on a sample basis with
indicators and because of the potential risk | underlying documentations by inspecting and comparing
that revenue may not be recorded in the | customer orders, delivery challans, bill of lading (in case
appropriate period. of export sales), invoices and other related documents.

-Compared sample of revenue transactions recorded
around the year end with the sales orders, sales invoices,
delivery documents and other relevant underlying
documentation to ensure that revenue pertains to the
appropriate accounting period.

-Ensured the adequacy of disclosures in accordance with
applicable financial reporting standards and the
Companies Act, 2017.

14
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RSM Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman
Chartered Accountants

TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

2. | Stockin trade
(Refer note 8to the financial statements)

Due to the significance of inventory balances
and related estimations involved, this is
considered as a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures included the following:

-Obtained an understanding of internal controls over
purchases and valuation of stock in trade and tested, on
a sample basis, their design, implementation and
operating effectiveness.

-Attendedphysical inventory count performed by the
Company.

-Obtained and reviewed the inventory count report of
the management and assessedits accuracy on a sample
basis.

-Ensuring that proper provision has been made for slow
moving, obsolete and damaged inventory or items selling
below cost.

-Performed NRV test to ensure that the inventory is
valued at lower of cost and NRV.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s reports thereon
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

15
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Chartered Accountants
TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern

and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion.Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

-dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

16
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Chartered Accountants
TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

-Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control.

-Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

-Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

-Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

17
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT Chartered Accountants
TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of
2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon
have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the
books of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the
Company's business; and

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIIl of 1980), wasdeducted by the
Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under section 7 ofthat Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Syed Naveed Abbas.

T Hjcﬂc&a?&&)»_
Chartered Accountants

Karachi.
Date: October 04, 2023
UDIN:AR202310239fzMsiFtCr
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Z > International Knitwear [imited
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30,2023

2023 2022
ASSETS Note Rupees Rupees
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 60,017,214 53,236,051
Long term deposits 6 1,500,000 2,052,600
Long term loan and advances 10 1,320,500 885,665
Long term investments 7 20,394,179 20,867,356
83,231,893 77,041,672
Current Assets
Stock in trade 8 139,666,589 126,572,714
Short term investments 7 20,006,622 17,439,319
Trade debts - considered good 9 38,341,450 144,689,705
Short term loans and advances 10 22,739,181 10,144,284
Other receivables 11 9,637,815 9,673,404
Taxation - net 19 19,370,803 25,015,755
Cash and bank balances 12 1,613,678 5,481,510
251,376,138 339,016,692
TOTAL ASSETS 334,608,031 416,058,364
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised Capital
20,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 200,000,000 200,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 13 96,750,000 96,750,000
Revenue Reserves
Unappropriated profit 60,035,753 45,218,098
156,785,753 141,968,098
Capital Reserves
Unrealized gain on revaluation of investments - FVTOCI 1,521,192 1,945,594
158,306,945 143,913,692
Non-Current Liabilities
Lease liabilities 14 - 642,288
Deferred Liabilities - Deferred Taxation Liability/(Asset) 15 - -
- 642,288
Current Liabilities
Short term finance under mark-up arrangement - Secured 17 28,884,947 152,477,501
Current maturity of lease liabilities 14 - 514,441
Current maturity of MTF salary and wages(Covid-19) liabilities 16 - 4,504,707
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 18 145,444,568 111,162,376
Unclaimed dividend 1,971,571 1,812,391
Current portion of deferred grant - 1,030,968
176,301,086 271,502,384
Contingencies and Commitments 20 - -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 334,608,031 416,058,364

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

/ 1% =

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director / CFO
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<2 International Knitwear Limited

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Net sales
Cost of goods sold

Gross profit
Administrative and selling expenses
Operating profit

Other income
Unrealized (loss) on revaluation of investments through P&L

Finance cost
Other charges

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit after taxation

Earnings per share - basic and diluted

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

’ 1%

2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees

21 611,489,441 670,262,761
22 (530,783,728) (610,521,595)
80,705,713 59,741,166

23 (33,568,777) (24,677,539)
47,136,936 35,063,627

24 6,931,824 9,615,368
(1,356,528) (636,679)

5,575,296 8,978,689

52,712,232 44,042,316

25 (12,832,766) (14,412,440)
26 (2,748,506) (2,044,462)
(15,581,272) (16,456,902)

37,130,960 27,585,414
19 (15,057,055) (5,500,682)
22,073,905 22,084,733

28 2.28 2.28

-

G

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI

Chairman
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Z > International Knitwear [imited
STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees

Profit after taxation for the year 22,073,905 22,084,733
Items that will be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit or loss
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to statement of profit or
loss
Unrealised (loss) / gain on remeasurement of investments classified as

(389,559) 1,040,505
FVTOCI - net of tax
Reclassification of OCI component on disposal of FVTOC investment (34,843
directly into equity '

(424,402) 1,040,505
Total comprehensive income for the year 21,649,503 23,125,238

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-

/ o o=

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director / CFO
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<2 International Knitwear Limited

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Balance as at June 30, 2021

Total comprehensive income:
Net profit for the year ended June 30, 2022

Fair value adjustment on investment classified as FVTOCI

Balance as at July 01, 2022

Total comprehensive income:
Net profit for the year ended June 30, 2023

Reclassification on disposal of FVTOCI directly into equity
Fair value adjustment on investment classified as FVTOCI
Unrealized loss realized and transfer of FVTOCI

Transaction with owners:
7.5% cash dividend paid for the year ended June 30, 2022

Balance as at June 30, 2023

--Capital Reserve--  --Revenue Reserve--

Issued, Subscribed

Unrealized gain /

and Paid up Share  (loss) on revaluation of Unappropriated profit Total
Capital investments
Rupees
96,750,000 905,089 23,133,365 120,788,454
- 22,084,733 22,084,733
1,040,505 - 1,040,5;05
96,750,000 1,945,594 45,218,098 143,913,692
- 22,073,905 22,073,905
(389,559) - (389,559)
(34,843) - (34,843)
- (7,256,250) (7,256,250)
96,750,000 1,521,192 60,035,753 158,306,945

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

1%

G

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director / CFO
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<2 International Knitwear Limited

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Note
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation
Adjustment for non cash items:
Depreciation
(Gain) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Other income
Finance cost
Profit before changes in working capital
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Short term loans and advances
Other receivables
Increase in current liabilities
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities
Financial charges paid
Taxes paid
Cash proceed from Sales tax
Net cash generated / (used) in operating activities
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure
Additions in investment
Disposal of investment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Lease rentals paid
Net cash (used) in investing activities
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash proceeds from short term finance under markup arrangement
Repayment of short term finance under markup arrangement
Dividend paid
Net cash (used) / generated from financing activities
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 29

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

/ 1%

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
37,130,960 27,585,414
7,550,230 5,564,942
(2,930,113) (1,244,000)
(2,645,183) (7,734,689)
12,832,766 14,412,440
14,807,700 10,998,693
51,938,660 38,584,107
(13,093,875) (3,468,096)
106,348,255 (96,695,097)
(13,029,732) 169,770
35,589 16,862,682
80,260,237 (83,130,741)
34,282,192 8,378,806
34,282,192 8,378,806
(13,214,043) (13,621,406)
(9,412,103) (8,334,290)
7,860,005 6,965,065
151,714,948 (51,158,458)
(14,842,697) (19,553,613)
(108,284,342) (16,025,711)
102,330,418 9,234,929
3,200,000 1,244,000
(1,156,729) (476,745)
(18,200,750) (25,577,140)
104,960,490 268,332,000
(234,957,256) (187,390,166)
(7,097,071) (5,542)
(137,093,837) 80,936,293
(3,579,639) 4,200,694
(482,992) (4,683,687)
(4,062,631) (482,992)

AR

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI
Chairman Chief Executive

JAVED KHAN
Director / CFO
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<2 International Knitwear Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

24

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
International Knitwear Limited (hereinafter referred as the "Company" or "IKL") is incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited. The geographical location and address of the head office and manufacturing plant of the Company is Plot # F-2A/L, SITE,
Karachi, Pakistan.
We are leaders in creating, developing and manufacturing knitted and woven apparel products right from basic to highly fashioned garments.
We are engaged in the export of quality garments. We have established a name of credentials owing to the projected commitments, working
speed and quality practices. Our operating philosophy is to provide buyers with products that meet their specification, and are reliably delivered
at a reasonable price in domestic and international markets.
BASIS OF PREPARATION
21 Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of :
- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017; and
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.
2.2 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as stated otherwise in these financial
statements.
23 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is Company’s functional currency. All the financial information
presented in Pakistani Rupee has been rounded off to nearest Rupee.
24 Critical ac i i and judg

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) requires the use of certain
accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Company's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the financial statements, are as follows:

- Classification of financial instruments; (note 4.2)
- Provision for impairment; (note 4.4)

- Valuation of work in progress; (note 4.8)

- Provision for obsolete inventory; (note 4.11)

- Taxation; (note 4.14)

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experiences and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS APPLICABLE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. hlichad

to

Change in acc ing standards, interpretations and acl ing and reporting standards

(a) A d to published acc ing and reporting standards which became effective during the year:
There were certain amendments to the accounting and reporting standards which became mandatory for the Company
during the year. However, the amendments did not have any significant impact on the financial reporting of the Company
and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these unconsolidated financial statements.




<2 International Knitwear Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

(b)

Amendments to published accounting and reporting standards that are not yet effective:

There are certain amendments to the accounting and reporting standards that will be mandatory for the Company’s annual
accounting periods beginning on or after July 1, 2023. However, these amendments will not have any significant impact on
the financial reporting of the Company and, therefore, have not been disclosed in these unconsolidated financial statements

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies are consistently applied in the preparation of these financial statements are the same as those applied in
earlier periods presented.

4.1

Government Grant (IAS 20)

Grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them and
that the grant will be received.

The benefit of a long-term finance at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a deferred grant, measured as the difference
between proceeds received and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market interest rates.

Grants related to long-term finances are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which the Company
recognizes as finance cost related to long-term finances at market rate of interest.

Financial Instruments

Initial measurement of financial asset

The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);

- fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and

- measured at amortised cost.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its

acquisition.

Subsequent measurement

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest / markup or dividend income, are recognised in income statement.

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest

amortised cost method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses (see (ii) below). Interest / markup
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in income
statement.

Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated

using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in income statement. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCl are reclassified to income statement.

Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in
income statement unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to
income statement.

25
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

43

4.4

4.5

4.6

26

Derecognition of Financial Assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Company has transferred.

Non-derivative financial assets

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes party to the respective
contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets and includes long term loans, accruals, prepayments, advances and other
receivables and cash and cash equivalent. The Company derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risk
and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are transferred or it neither transfers nor retain substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership and does not retain control over the transferred asset.

Regular way contracts

All purchases and sales of securities that require delivery within the time frame established by regulation or market convention such as
'T+2' purchases and sales are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell
the assets.

Impairment
Financial assets
The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for other securities and bank balances which are
measured at 12 months expected credit losses. Since these assets are short term in nature, therefore no credit loss is expected on
these balances.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount, being higher of value in use and fair value less costs
to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets. An impairment loss is
recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the company becomes party to the respective contractual
provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing borrowings and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the
financial liabilities when contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired. Financial liability other than at fair value through
profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these
liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate method.

Off-setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when the Company
has a legally enforceable right to offset and the Company intends to either settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and to settle the
liabilities simultaneously. Income and expense items of such assets and liabilities are also offset and the net amount is reported in the
financial statements only when permitted by the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

4.7

4.8

4.9

410

411

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged, from the month when the asset is available for use and ceased prior to the month of disposal, to profit and loss
account applying the straight-line method.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to profit and loss account as and when incurred. Major renewals and improvements are
capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

Gains and losses arising on disposal of property, plant and equipment are taken to profit and loss account in the year of disposal.

Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost accumulated up to the balance sheet date and represents expenditure incurred on property,
plant and equipment in the course of construction. These expenditures are transferred to relevant category of property, plant and
equipment as and when the assets start operation.

Right-of use assets

Right of use assets are initially measured at cost being the present value of lease payments, initial direct costs, any lease payments
made at or before the commencement of the lease as reduced by any incentives received. These are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged on straight line basis over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the asset. Where the ownership of
the asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or if the cost of the asset reflects that the Company will exercise the
purchase option, depreciation is charged over the useful life of asset

Leases

A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration. The entity recognizes a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset
is initially measured at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses if any, and adjusted for
certain remeasurements of the lease liability. The right-of-use asset is depreciated using the straight line method over the shorter of
the lease term and the asset's useful life . The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on the same basis as that for owned
assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the entity's incremental borrowing
rate. The lease liability is subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease payments made. It is
re-measured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of
whether extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised.
Liabilities in respect of short term and low value leases are not recognised and payments against such leases are recognised as expense
in profit or loss.

Stock-in-Trade

(@) Raw, packing and other materials are valued at the lower of cost calculated on a first-in-first-out basis and net realizable
value.

(b)  Work in process is valued at material cost plus estimated conversion cost.

(c)  Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). NRV signifies the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less cost necessarily to be incurred in order to make the sale.

(d)  Stock-in-transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

4.12

413

4.14

415

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

28

Staff Retirement Benefits

The Company operates an approved defined contributory provident fund scheme for eligible employees. Equal contributions are made
to the fund by the Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33 % of basic salary.

Compensated Absences

The Company has a policy to provide for compensated absences for all employees in accordance with the rules of the Company.
Taxation

Current
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation in accordance with the final tax regime, of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Income not covered under final tax regime is taxed under normal regime.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary difference between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided
is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted at
the balance sheet date. However due to application of final tax basis of taxation, deferred taxation would not arise.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are directly
attributable to the construction of a qualifying asset in which case they are capitalized as part of the cost of that particular asset.
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, when it is
probable that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Foreign Currencies Translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in Pak Rupees at the rate of exchange prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies as at the balance sheet date are expressed in rupees at rates of exchange prevailing
on that date. Non monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rate at the date of the transactions. Exchange gains and losses are included in income currently.

Revenue Recognition

- Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the Company satisfies a performance obligation by transferring promised goods to
customer. Goods are transferred when the customer obtains their control (i.e. on dispatch of goods to customers). Revenue is
recognised at transaction price (which excludes estimates of variable consideration).

- Profit on bank balances is recognised on a time proportion basis on the principal amount outstanding and at the applicable rate.

- Gains / (losses) arising on disposal of investments are recognised on the date when the transaction takes place.

Balances from contract with customers

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. The Company recognizes a
contract asset for the earned consideration that is conditional if the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer
before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due.




<% [nternational Knitwear Limited
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional. Trade receivables are carried at
original invoice amount less expected credit loss based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts are written
off when identified.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from
the customer. A contract liability is recognized at earlier of when the payment is made or the payment is due if a customer pays
consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer.

Right of return assets

Right of return asset represents the Company’s right to recover the goods expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured
at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the goods, including any potential decreases in the
value of the returned goods. The Company updates the measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its expected level of
returns, as well as any additional decreases in the value of the returned products.

Refund liabilities
A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received (or receivable) from the customer and is measured
at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

4.20  Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash balances, current and deposit account balances with banks, and running finance facilities
availed by the Company, which form an integral part of Company's cash management and are included as part of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of statement of cash flow.

4.21  Related Party Transactions
All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at arm’s length at normal commercial
rates on the same terms and conditions as third party transactions using valuation modes, as admissible, except in extremely rare
circumstances, where subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, it is in the interest of the Company to do so.

4.22  Segments Reporting
Identification of segments
Export division
Local division
Basis for allocation for revenue and expenses:
Revenue in respect of each segment is separately identifiable. Expenses against knitting charges, dyeing and other charges, embroidery
charges, stitching charges, clearing and forwarding charges, freight octroi and cartage expenses are allocated on actual basis. However,
depreciation and all other general expenses are allocated on the following basis.

Segment Allocation

Basis of allocation Export Local
Depreciation on all assets 46.44% 53.56%

4.23  Earnings per share
The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

4.24  Dividend and other appropriations
Dividend to the shareholders is recognized in the period in which it is declared and other appropriations are recognized in the period in
which these are approved by the Board of Directors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

5,

5.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating assets
Capital workin progress
Right-of-use assets

=

Operating Assets

Year ended June 30,2023

Opening net book amount

Additions - cost

Transfer from CWIP/ROU

Disposals - cost

Depreciation charge

Disposals - accumulated depreciation
Closing net book amount

At June 30, 2023

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net hook amount

Year ended June 30, 2022

Opening net book amount

Additions - cost

Transfer from CWIP/ROU

Disposals - cost

Depreciation charge

Disposals - accumulated depreciation
Closing net book amount

At June 30, 2022

Cost

Accumulated depreciation
Net hook amount

Rate of depreciation

30

w3 022
Note Rupees Rupees
51 60,017,214 52,511,801
52 - -
53 - 724,250
60,017,214 53,236,051
OWNED ASSETS
Leasehold Land || Factory Building ||Plant and Machinery|{ Furniture and Fittings [| Office Equipment's | Motor Viehicles | Computers foal
Rupees
3589771 31,975,682 10,196,971 1427336 601,080 4263545 157416 52,511,801
- - 231,000 289,100 312,500 9,292,750 487,200 10,612,550
3,988,730 - pLVY) 4230147
. . (1,368,500] . 1,892,500) (326,800) (3,587,800
W (1,859,815) (1,833,564) [480,606) [233421) (2,281,49) (33383 (7,067397)
- - 1,101,813 - 1,892,500 33,600 3317913
3,542,594 34104597 831,10 1235830 680,153 11516217 610,103 60,017,214
471765 47,768,814 20,138,112 2541519 1405726 19843492 1,789,644 98,210,959
(1175058 (13664217) (11,810392) (1,305,689) [725572) (83325 (L173541) (38,193,744}
3,542,594 34,104,597 8327,120 1,235,830 680,153 11,516,217 610,103 60,017,214
3636947 13,014,011 10,732,005 986,518 639,732 2105529 301,264 31,416,026
- - 1,207,000 626,052 151,000 3475725 452,644 5912421
20,168,896 - - - - - 20,168,896
- - (100,000) - (1,400,090) (25,000) (1525,090)
(#7,1768) 1,207,225) (1,742,054) 185,234) 189,652) (1,317,709) (29649) (4,985,542)
. 100,000 1,400,090 25,000 1,525,090
3,589,771 31,975,682 10,196,971 142133 601,080 4263545 457416 52,511,801
4,117,652 43,780,084 2,275,612 25,419 1,093,226 12,207,825 1629244 86,956,062
1,127,881) 11,804,402) (11,078,641) 825,083) 492,145) (71944,280)  (1,171,828) (34,444,260)
3,589,771 31,975,682 10,196,971 1421336 601,080 4,263,545 457416 52,511,801
1% 5% 10% 2% 0% 0% 3%
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5.1 Detail of disposal of property, plant and equipment

Cost Accumulated Bookvalue || sale proceeds Gain
depreciation Mode of disposal ||Particular of Purchaser|
Rupees
Plant and machinery
Plant and machinery 245,000 82,650 162,350 245,000 82,650 Insurance Claim jubilee Insurance
Plant and machinery scrap 1,123,500 1,019,163 104,337 395,000 290,663 Negotiation Owais Apparels
1,368,500 1,101,813 266,687 640,000 373313
Motor Vehicles
Vehicle Car (BFK-296) 1,825,000 1,825,000 - 2,500,000 2,500,000 Negotiation Mr. Asif
Vehicle Bike (KKZ-7094) 67,500 67,500 - 20,000 20,000 Negotiation Mr. Jamil Ahmed
1,892,500 1,892,500 B 2,520,000 2,520,000
Computer/Laptop
Computer scrap 36,000 32,800 3,200 9,000 5,800 Negotiation Mr. Magsood Alam
Computer scrap 35,000 35,000 - 5,000 5,000 Negotiation Mr. Magsood Alam
Computer scrap 18,500 18,500 - 5,000 5,000 Negotiation Mr. Ejaz Khan
Computer scrap 68,000 68,000 - 2,000 2,000 Negotiation Mr. Saleem Uddin
Computer scrap 16,000 16,000 - 5,000 5,000 Negotiation Mr. M. Shahid
Computer scrap 118,300 118,300 - 10,000 10,000 Negotiation Akash Gill
Computer scrap 35,000 35,000 - 4,000 4,000 Negotiation Mr. Saleem Uddin
326,800 323,600 3,200 40,000 36,300
3,587,800 3,317,913 269,887 3,200,000 2,930,113
512 Segment wise allocation of depreciation charge for the year
[ 2023 I 2022 ]
| Export Local Total || Export || Local || Total |
Rupees
Lease hold land 21,911 25,266 47,177 19,510 27,666 47,176
Factory building 863,778 996,037 1,859,815 499,262 707,963 1,207,225
Plant and machinery 851,586 981,978 1,833,564 720,447 1,021,607 1,742,054
Cost of goods sold 1,737,275 2,003,281 3,740,556 1,239,220 1,757,235 2,996,455
Furniture and fittings 223214 257,392 480,606 76,606 108,628 185,234
Office equipments 108,414 125,013 233,427 78,433 111,219 189,652
Motor vehicles 1,059,624 1,221,871 2,281,495 544,954 772,755 1,317,709
Computers 153,876 177,437 331,313 122,618 173,874 296,492
Admin and selling expenses 1,545,128 1,781,713 3,326,841 822,611 1,166,476 1,989,087
3,282,402 3,784,995 7,067,397 2,061,831 2,923,712 4,985,542
5.1.3 Theleasehold land of 1.069 acre is located at SITE, Karachi.
2023 2022
5.2 Movement in capital work in progress Rupees Rupees
Opening balance - 3,263,852
Add: Addition during the year 3,988,730 16,905,044
Less: Transfer to operating assets (3,988,730) (20,168,896)
53 Right-of-use assets
Motor Vehicle
Opening balances 724,250 1,303,650
Transferred to own assets (241,417) -
Additions during the period . -
Disposals - -
Depreciation charge for the period {482,833) (579,400)
724,250

Rate of depreciation

53.1 Depreciation expense relating to right to use assets - Motor Vehicle of Rs. 482,833/~ has been charged in 'Admin and selling expenses’

LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Security deposits - SSGC
Security deposits - against finance lease

6.1

1,500,000 1,500,000
- 552,600
1,500,000 2,052,600

This includes the security deposit held by Bank Al-Habib Limited against the guarantee it has provided to Sui Southern Gas Company Limited against supply of gas to the Company. The guarantee

provided by the bank to SSGCL is of Rs. 3,000,000, while the bank has held 50% (i.e. Rs. 1,500,000) of this guarantee from the bank account of International Knitwear Limited as security deposit.
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7. INVESTMENTS

Long Term Investments

At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Equity securities - listed

Short Term Investments

At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Equity securities - listed
Mutual funds - listed

7.1 Llong Term Investments
Equity Securities - listed
Number of Shares

2023 2022
- 767
26,500 26,500
1,000 1,000
40,500 40,500
14,500 14,500
1,708 864

7.2 Short Term Investments
Equity securities - listed

Number of Shares

2023 2022
568 31,565
2,500 2,000
12,500 12,500
6,400 6,400
33,000 33,500
13,900 14,900
14,250 13,500
6,800 -

The Searle Company Ltd.

Engro Fertilizer Limited.

Engro Corporation Ltd.

Pakistan Oilfields Ltd.

The Hub Power Company Limited
Millat Tractors Limited

The Searle Company Ltd.

Attock Petroleum Limited

Engro Polymer & Chemical Limited
Pakistan Oilfields Ltd.

Engro Fertilizer Limited.

Pakistan State Oil Co. Ltd.

The Hub Power Company Limited
Pakistan Petroleum Limited

7.2.1 Short Term Investments
Mutual Funds - listed

Number of Units

2023 2022
11,165 9,759 AKD Islamic Fund

7,308 27,887 MCB Cash Management Optimizer Fund
74,848 - UBL Liquidity Plus Fund
15,803 - UBL Money Market Fund
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2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
7.1 20,394,179 20,867,356
7.2 9,532,040 14,126,546
7.2.1 10,474,582 ” 3,312,773
20,006,622 17,439,319
40,400,801 38,306,675
- 83,618
2,187,045 2,348,960
259,890 257,090
16,271,685 16,435,305
1,008,910 988,465
666,649 753,918
20,394,179 20,867,356
21,766 3,441,216
750,625 642,620
528,125 995,375
2,571,328 2,597,184
2,723,490 2,969,440
1,543,039 2,560,416
991,515 920,295
402,152 -
9,532,040 14,126,546
568,248 493,745
741,448 2,819,028
7,573,586 -
1,591,300 -
10,474,582 3,312,773




<2 International Knitwear Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
8. STOCK IN TRADE Note Rupees Rupees
Raw material 29,274,943 12,197,441
‘Work-in-process 105,605,613 99,503,116
Finished goods 8.1 4,786,033 14,872,157
139,666,589 126,572,714
8.1 Finished goods
- Finished stock 1,611,323 -
- Finished stock in transit - 9,831,332
- Scrap / Left over stock 3,174,710 5,040,825
4,786,033 14,872,157
The finished goods includes left over stock of Rs 3.17 M (2022: 5.04 M) recorded at NRV.
9. TRADE DEBTS - CONSIDERED GOOD
Foreign - secured, considered good 700,475 71,489,270
Loss on translation of export debtors (2,876) (185,674)
697,599 71,303,596
Local - unsecured
- Considered good 37,643,851 73,386,109
- Considered doubtful 523,270 523,270
38,167,121 73,909,379
Less: Provision for bad debts 9.1 (523,270) (523,270)
9.3 38,341,450 144,689,705
9.1 Provision for doubtful trade debts
Opening provision 523,270 1,161,162
Provision for the year - -
Reversal of provision - (637,892)
523,270 523,270

9.2 As at June 30, 2023, trade receivables of Rs Nil (2022: Rs 0.523 million ) were past due but not impaired. These relate

to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default.

9.3 Age analysis of trade debts is as follows:

Not yet due 38,341,450 144,589,269
Past due
- Upto 1 month - 95,007
- 1to 6 months - 5,429
- More than 6 months 523,270 523,270
38,864,720 145,212,975
10. LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loans and advances to employees - Long term portion - unsecured, considered good
Loan to employees 10.1 2,277,289 1,945,165
Less: current portion of loan to employees (956,789) (1,059,500)
1,320,500 885,665
Short term Loans and ad - ed, i ed good
Advance to contractor and supplier 21,782,392 1,311,254
Current portion of advances to employees 956,789 1,059,500
Short term deposits - 7,773,530
22,739,181 10,144,284
10.1 The unsecured loans to employees are granted in accordance with the terms of employ . Loans are rec: ble in monthly instal over a period

ranging between 3 to 5 years and are interest free. The outstanding balance as at June 30, 2023 pertains to a period between 1 - 3 years.

Transactions:
Advance to CFO
Opening balance 140,000 190,000
Paid advance during the year - -
140,000 190,000
Refund advance during the year (50,000) (50,000)
90,000 140,000

10.2 Company loan made to CFO year 2021 to meet Educational expenses of his child which are subsequently received in instalments. The closing balance is

Rs. 0.09 million as on June 30, 2023.
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11.  OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sales tax refundable
Export rebate receivables
Research and development receivable
Other receivable

12, CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand
With banks in:
- Treasures call accounts (deposit accounts)
- Saving account
- Current accounts

Security deposit

Note

6.1

121 Deposit and savings accounts carry profit of 10.75 to 18.50 % per annum (2022: 5.5%-10.75% per annum)

13, ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital

Number of Shares
2023 2022
3,000,000 3,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid in cash.
225,000 225,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each issued as bonus shares
6,450,000 6,450,000 Right shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid in cash
9,675,000 9,675,000

2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
6,726,851 5,974,154
336,185 347,110
2,574,779 2,574,779
- 777,361
9,637,815 9,673,404
100,000 100,000
2,571,129 6,789,175
218,127 -
224,422 92,335
3,013,678 6,881,510
(1,500,000) (1,500,000)
1,613,678 5,481,510
30,000,000 30,000,000
2,250,000 2,250,000
64,500,000 64,500,000
96,750,000 96,750,000

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carries no right to fixed income. The holders are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time

and are entitled to one vote per share at company. All Share rank equal with regards to the company's residual assets.

14.  LEASE LIABILITIES

Up to one year 514,441
Later than one year and not later then five years 642,288
1,156,729
June 2023 June 2022
Minimum Financial Present Value of | MinimumLlease | Financial Charges Present Value of
Lease Charges Minimum Lease Payments Minimum Lease
Payments Payment Payment
Rupees
Not later than one year - 585,468 71,027 514,441
Later than one year but not later
than five years - - - 650,184 7,896 642,288
1,235,652 78,923 1,156,729

141  The above represents finance lease entered into with Bank Al-Habib Limited for lease of motor vehicle. The liability under the agreement was matured

earlier on May 19, 2023 and was subject to 12 Month KIBOR+2.5% .
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2023 2022
Note Rupees Rupees
15. D LIABILITIES - DI TAXATION LIABILITY/(ASSET)

Deferred tax liability arising in respect of:
Accelerated tax depreciation 1,241,362 957,414
Right to use asset - 126,020
Unrealized gain on investments - 60,574
Deferred tax assets arising in respect of:
Provision for doubtful debts (81,270) (151,748)
Unrealized loss on investments (271,188)
Liability against asset subject to finance lease - (201,271)
Carry forward turnover tax (1,274,726 (2,462,463

(1,627,183) (2,815,482)

(385,821) (1,671,474)

Not recorded due to prudence 15.1 385,821 1,671,474
15.1 During the year the amount of deferred tax asset estimated by the company is Rs. 0.385 million (2022: 1.671 million) the company has recorded deferred

tax asset to the extent of liability charged in the current year and not recorded further deferred tax asset on prudence basis.

16. MTF SALARY AND WAGES(COVID-19) LIABILITIES
MTF salary and wages(Covid-19) 16.1 - 5,535,675

MTF salary and wages(Covid-19)
Up to one year - 4,504,707
Later than one year and not later then five years -

4,504,707

Deferred Grant
Up to one year - 1,030,968
Later than one year and not later then five years - -

- 1,030,968

MTF salary and wages(Covid-19)

The Finance against wages and salaries to worker and employees for the month of April, May and June 2020 under the SBP refinance scheme , Concerns
announced vide H&SMEFD Circular NO. 6 dated 10th April 2020. The Company will pay a quarterly mark up at a discounted rate of 3% per annum, with
eight equal quarterly instalments starting from January 2021. The loan is secured by way of equitable mortgage over factory property of the Company.
Secured against hypothecation charge over stock Rs. 200.32 million (2022: 200.32 M), equitable Mortgage Charge of Rs, 324.52 million over Factory at Plot
No, P-2A/L SITE, Karachi, Measuring 1,989 Acres in the hame of International Knit Wear, having Market Value of Rs. 200.32 Mn & PSV Rs, 160.26 Mn,
Valuation Conducted by Pakistan Inspection Co Pvt, limited and personal guarantee from 03 Directors for Rs. 400 million each. During the year the
company has paid the outstanding balance amount.

17. SHORT TERM FINANCE UNDER MARK-UP ARRANGEMENT - SECURED

Running finance facility 17.1 5,676,309 5,964,501
Export refinance facility 17.2 8,000,000 59,000,000
Short term finance - local sales 17.3 3,498,102 5,000,000
Finance against Foreign documentary bills 17.4 - 36,824,000
Finance against local documentary bills 17.5 11,710,536 45,689,000
28,884,947 152,477,501
17.1 Running finance facility
Secured from Bank Al Habib Limited against hypothecation charge over stocks and equitable mortgage over factory property at Plot # F-2A/L, SITE, Karachi
amounting to Rs.200.32 million (2022: Rs. 200.32 million) (with 50% margin), and lien over export documents and personal guarantees of Directors of the
Company. The rate of mark-up is equal to 3 Months KIBOR + 2.5% p.a (2022: 3 Months KIBOR + 2.5% p.a). The facility is renewable and is valid till June 30,
2023.
The facility for running finance as at June 30, 2023 amounts to Rs. 6 million (2022: Rs. 6 million) of which amount remaining unutilized at the year end was
Rs. 0.32 million (2022 : Rs. 0.035 million)
17.2 Export refinance facility
Secured from Bank Al Habib Limited against hypothecation charge over stocks and equitable mortgage over factory property at Plot # F-2A/L, SITE, Karachi
amounting to Rs.200.32 million (2022: Rs. 200.32 million) (with 50% margin), and lien over export documents and personal guarantees of directors of the
Company. The rate of mark-up is equal to 3 months' KIBOR + 1.0% p.a (2022: 3 Months KIBOR + 1.0% p.a). The facility is renewable and is valid till June 30,
2023.
The facility for export refinance as at June 30, 2023 amounts to Rs. 39.0 million (2022: Rs. 75.5 million) of which amount remaining unutilized at the year
end was Rs. 31.0 million. (2022: Rs. 16.5 million)
17.3 Short term finance - local sales

The Finance secured from Bank Al Habib Limited against invoice of KHAADI (80% of invoice amount) The rate of mark-up is equal to 3 Months KIBOR + 2.5%
p.a (2022: 3 Months KIBOR + 2.5% p.a). The facility is renewable and is valid till June 30, 2023.

The facility for Short term finance - local sales as at June 30, 2023 amounts to Rs. 5 million (2022: 5 million) of which amounts remaining unutilized at the
year end was Rs. 1.50 million. (2022 : Nil)
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17.4 Finance against Foreign documentary bills
This facility is secured from Bank Al Habib Limited provided to negotiate (purchase) Foreign Documentary bills/d: i by the on
export made against export L/C denominated in Foreign Currency. The rate of mark-up 3 Month KIBOR + 2.5 % p.a (2022: 3 Month KIBOR + 2.5 % p.a). The
facility is renewable and valid till June 30, 2023.
The facility for Short term finance - local sales as at June 30, 2023 amounts to Rs. 97.68 million (2022: 85 million) of which amounts remaining unutilized at
the year end was Rs. 97.68 million . (2022 : 48 million)
17.5 Finance against local documentary bills
This facility is secured from Bank Al Habib Limited provided to negotiate (purchase) local Documentary bills/documents submitted by the company on local
sales made against local L/C. The rate of mark-up 3 Month KIBOR + 2.5 % p.a (2022: 3 Month KIBOR + 2.5 % p.a). The facility is renewable and valid till June
30, 2023.
The facility for Short term finance - local sales as at June 30, 2023 amounts to Rs. 100.0 million (2022: 100.0 million) of which amounts remaining unutilized
at the year end was Rs. 88.29 million . (2022 : 52.9 million)
17.6 Letter of credit Sight
This finance against import of packing and raw materials. Payment is made by the bank upon verification of documents.
This facility for import as at June 30, 2023 amounts to 2 million. (2022: 2 million) of which the amount remaining unutilised at the year the end was Nil.
(2022: Nil)
2023 2022
18.  CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES Note Rupees Rupees
Creditors 56,499,691 89,983,279
Accrued expenses 9,605,792 12,815,221
Compensated absences payable 1,824,961 1,271,959
Other fund payable 18.1 679,287 409,080
Workers' profit participation fund 18.2 3,473,165 1,481,494
Workers' welfare fund 2,947,579 3,398,893
Advance from customers 18.3 68,759,674 489,449
Advance from others - 340,000
Others 1,654,419 973,000
145,444,568 111,162,376
18.1 Other fund payable
Provident fund 656,626 395,690
EOBI payable 22,661 13,390
679,287 409,080
18.2 Workers' profit participation fund
Opening balance 1,481,494 || -
Provision for the year 1,991,671 1,481,494
3,473,165 1,481,494
Less: Payments made during the year - -
3,473,165 1,481,494
183 Advance from customers
The amount included of Rs. 68.05 million as advance received from Twinco Capital Finco against sale of El corte Ingels (export Customer)
19. TAXATION
Tax deducted at source
Less: Provision for tax 34,427,858 30,516,436
Current year (11,350,753)| | (7,993,084)
Prior year (3,706,302) 2,492,403
(15,057,055) (5,500,681)
19,370,803 25,015,755
19.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit

The numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and applicable tax rate has not been presented in these financial statements as the total
income of the Company attracts minimum tax under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and its export sales fall under final tax regime.

20. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

20.1

20.2

Contingencies

For tax year 2008, an amended assessment order has been passed under section 122(5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 by the Additional
Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) against which the company filed an appeal with Commissioner Inland Revenue Appeals-Il who passed an order with
certain amendments. In pursuance of such order, Company filed an appeal in 2011 before Appellate Tribunal and matter is pending for hearing.

Commitments

Commitments under letters of credit as at June 30, 2023 amounted to Rs. nil (2022: Rs. 30,576,780).
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21.  NET SALES | EXPORT || LOCAL 1] TOTAL |
2023 I 2022 1 2023 | 2022 11 2023 | 2022
Note Rupees |
Export 281,619,832 278,020,865 - - 281,619,832 278,020,865
sales local 211 - - 327,503,427 393,122,681 327,503,427 393,122,681
Export rebates 3,984,933 3,141,636 - - 3,984,933 3,141,636
285,604,765 281,162,501 327,503,427 393,122,681 613,108,192 674,285,182
Sales discount (1,354,515) (2,556,501) (15,893) (55,129) (1,370,408) (2,611,630)
R&D/ Rebate Commission (248,343) (1,410,791) - - (248,343) (1,410,791)
(1,602,858) (3,967,292) (15,893) (55,129) (1,618,751) (4,022,421)
284,001,907 277,195,209 327,487,534 393,067,552 611,489,441 670,262,761
211 Sales local -
Local - - 376,530,206 452,128,945 376,530,206 452,128,945
Others 21.1.1 - - 7,574,023 8,025,222 7,574,023 8,025,222
- - 384,104,229 460,154,167 384,104,229 460,154,167
Sales tax Local - B 55,339,107 65,693,949 55,339,107 65,693,949
Sales tax others | - | - ” 1,261,695 | 1,@ | 1,261,695 | 1,@
- - 56,600,802 67,031,486 56,600,802 67,031,486
21.1.1 Others include scrap sales amounting to Rs. 2,679,493, (2022: Rs. 2,579,919)
EXPORT [ LOCAL 1 TOTAL
[ 203 ] 2022 2023 2022 11 2023 1 2022 |
Rupees
22.  COST OF GOODS SOLD
Raw and packing material consumed
Opening stock 5,044,398 12,716,705 7,153,043 13,340,888 12,197,441 26,057,594
Purchases 126,125,693 137,979,708 145,437,728 195,657,588 271,563,422 333,637,296
Closing stock (13,596,538) (5,044,398) (15,678,405) (7,153,043) (29,274,943) (12,197,441)
117,573,553 145,652,015 136,912,367 201,845,433 254,485,920 347,497,449
Salaries, allowances and benefits 24,867,293 22,407,082 28,674,907 31,773,625 53,542,200 54,180,707
Provident fund contribution 884,840 671,913 1,020,325 952,784 1,905,165 1,624,697
Knitting charges 5,847,254 4,040,272 6,742,570 5,729,174 12,589,824 9,769,446
Dyeing and other charges 31,940,707 26,597,228 36,831,384 37,715,325 68,772,091 64,312,553
Embroidery / Printing charges 11,963,334 8,784,836 13,795,129 12,457,049 25,758,463 21,241,885
Stitching charges 32,757,128 40,226,619 37,772,814 57,042,034 70,529,942 97,268,653
Fuel and power 4,212,533 3,233,755 4,857,544 4,585,519 9,070,077 7,819,274
Communication 140,859 176,285 162,426 249,975 303,285 426,260
Postage & telegrams 159,548 174,565 183,977 247,535 343,525 422,100
Repairs and maintenance 1,179,150 935,998 1,359,698 1,327,260 2,538,848 2,263,258
Staff welfare and medical expenses 125,690 98,312 144,935 139,408 270,625 237,720
Motor vehicle and conveyance 1,512,981 1,030,793 1,744,644 1,461,683 3,257,625 2,492,476
Insurance 316,587 222,850 365,061 316,005 681,648 538,855
Depreciation 5.1.2 1,737,274 1,239,220 2,003,281 1,757,235 3,740,555 2,996,455
Clearing and forwarding 2,384,196 3,455,818 - - 2,384,196 3,455,818
Freight, octroi and cartage 3,045,213 2,100,201 3,511,489 2,978,120 6,556,702 5,078,321
Export development charges 957,326 774,036 - - 957,326 774,036
Factory compliance expenses 231,609 258,496 267,073 366,552 498,682 625,048
Commission on Sales tax/Income Tax refund 182,526 145,903 210,474 206,892 393,000 352,795
Travelling expenses 507,702 609,694 585,439 864,556 1,093,141 1,474,250
Inspection fees 729,598 378,654 841,312 536,937 1,570,910 915,591
Reversal of GST refundable 1,253,653 - 1,445,608 - 2,699,261 -
Others 1,326,955 861,118 1,530,135 1,221,079 2,857,090 2,082,197
128,263,954 118,423,645 144,050,227 161,928,750 272,314,181 280,352,395
Opening stock | 41,150,708 | 37,100,487 58,352,408 | 38,921,516 99,503,116 76,022,003
Closing stock (49,047,773) (41,150,708) (56,557,839) (58,352,408) {105,605,613)| (99,503,116)
(7,897,065) (4,050,221) 1,794,569 (19,430,892) (6,102,497) (23,481,113)
Cost of goods manufactured 237,940,442 260,025,439 282,757,162 344,343,291 520,697,604 604,368,731
Finished goods
Opening stock | 6,150,559 | 10,260,694 ” 8,721,598 | 10,764,327 | | 14,872,157 21,025,021
Closing stock (2,222,839) (6,150,559) (2,563,194) (8,721,598)) (4,786,033) (14,872,157)
3,927,720 4,110,135 6,158,404 2,042,729 10,086,124 6,152,864
COST OF GOODS SOLD 241,868,162 264,135,574 288,915,566 346,386,021 530,783,728 610,521,595
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23.  ADMINISTRATIVE AND SELLING EXPENSES

Salaries, allowances and benefits
Provident fund contribution
Communication

Postage & telegrams

Staff welfare and medical expenses
Motor vehicle and conveyance
Repair and maintenance

Legal and professional charges
Auditors' remuneration
Depreciation

Printing and stationery
Advertisement and publicity
Fee, subscription and periodicals
Rent, rate and taxes

Insurance

Others

23.1  Auditors’ Remuneration

Annual audit

Half yearly review

Out of pocket expenses

Sales tax on audit and review fee

24.  OTHER INCOME / (LOSS)

Income From Financial Assets

Profit on bank accounts

Dividend income

Exchange loss - net

Grant income

Loss on disposal of investment - net
Reversal of provision against doubtful debts

Loss on translation of foreign currency debtors
Other Income

Income From Non-Financial Assets

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

24.1 Dividend income
Listed Shares
Mutual Fund

24.2  (Loss) on disposal of investment

FVTPL
-Quoted securities
-Mutual funds

FvTOCI
-Quoted securities

38

Note

23.1
512

242

EXPORT LOCAL 1] TOTAL
2023 | 2022 (] 2023 | 2022 [ 2023 | 2022
Rupees
8,356,099 6,610,839 9,635,563 9,374,282 17,991,662 15,985,121
339,398 285,242 391,365 404,479 730,763 689,721
136,709 200,979 157,642 284,991 294,351 485,970
4,962 2,718 5722 3,854 10,684 6572
219,161 280,231 252,719 397,373 471,880 677,604
921,216 500,738 1,062,270 710,056 1,983,486 1,210,794
128,905 48,341 148,642 68,549 277,547 116,890
242,800 196,849 279,976 279,135 522,776 475,984
226,300 207,482 260,950 294,213 487,250 416,070
1,769,376 1,062,229 2,040,299 1,506,258 3,809,675 2,568,487
134,356 92,198 154,929 130,739 289,285 222,937
71,693 61,174 82,670 86,745 154,363 147,919
2,566,816 461,278 2,959,840 654,099 5,526,656 1,115,377
243,849 - 281,186 - 525,035 -
61,052 62,112 70,400 88,077 131,452 150,189
168,087 133,282 193,825 188,997 361,912 407,904
15,590,779 10,205,692 17,977,998 14,471,847 33,568,777 24,677,539
2023 2022
Rupees Rupees
253,400 206,250
100,000 84,000
101,250 95,000
32,600 30,820
487,250 416,070
EXPORT LOCAL 1] TOTAL
2023 | 2022 (] 2023 | 2022 I 2023 [ 2022
Rupees
470,132 109,429 542,117 155,172 1,012,248 264,601
3,748,586 1,680,816 4,322,560 2,383,426 8,071,146 4,064,242
(4,275,620) 5,207,925 - - (4,275,620) 5,207,925
119,592 426,369 137,903 604,509 257,495 1,030,968
(794,926) (1,095,355) (916,643) (1,553,232) (1,711,569) (2,648,586)
- - - 637,892 - 637,892
(2,876) (185,674) - - (2,876) (185,674)
302,299 348,587 650,886 -
1,360,870 514,471 1,569,243 729,529 2,930,113 1,244,000
928,058 6,657,982 6,003,766 2,957,386 6,931,824 9,615,368
3,576,390 2,604,312
4,494,756 1,459,930
8,071,146 4,064,242
(1,688,261)) (2,648,586))
(23,308) -
(1,711,569) (2,648,586)
(34,843) -
{1,746,412) (2,648,586)
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25,

26.

27.

28.

29.

FINANCE COST

Mark-up on export refinance

Mark-up on running finance

Mark-up on MTF salary and wages (Covid-19)

Bank charges

Mark-up on liability against asset subject to finance lease
Brokerage and other charges

Mark-up on EFS loan

Mark-up on STF loan & Discounting

OTHER CHARGES
Workers' profit participation fund
Workers' welfare fund

SEGMENT INFORMATION

EXPORT Il LOCAL 1] TOTAL
2023 T 2022 1l 2023 | 2022 11 2023 | 2022
Rupees

1,498,582 814,564 1,728,040 1,155,066 3,226,622 1,969,631
437223 277,858 504,169 394,007 941,392 671,865
143,510 568,259 165,484 805,801 308,994 1,374,061
1,779,891 1,434,851 2,052,424 2,034,643 3,832,315 3,469,494
40,699 44,747 46,931 63,452 87,630 108,199
5,669 23,047 6,538 32,681 12,207 55,727

308,082 - 355,255 - 663,337 -
- - 3,760,270 6,763,464 3,760,269 6,763,464
4,213,656 3,163,326 8,619,110 11,249,114 12,832,766 14,412,440
925,017 612,690 1,066,654 868,804 1,991,671 1,481,494
351,507 232,822 405,328 330,146 756,835 562,968
1,276,524 845,512 1,471,982 1,198,950 2,748,506 2,044,462

A segment is a distinguishable component of the company that is engaged in business activities from which the Company earns revenues and incur expenses and its results are regularly reviewed
by the Company's Chief Operating Decision Maker to make decision about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. Further, discrete financial information is available

for each segment.

Based on internal management reporting structure and products produced and sold, the Company is organized into the following two operating segments:

- Export
- Local

Management monitors the operating results of above mentioned segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources to be allocated and of assessing performance.

Segment revenue and segment result for the year are as follows:

Net Sales

Cost of goods sold

Gross profit

Administrative and selling expenses

Segment results

Other income / (loss)

Unrealized gain / (loss) on revaluation of investments
held for trading

Finance cost

Other charges

Profit before taxation from continuing operation

Taxation
- Current
- Prior

Profit after taxation from continuing operation

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
Earnings per share - basic and diluted
Profit after taxation
Number of ordinary shares
Earnings per share
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances
Running finance facility

EXPORT Il LOCAL 11 TOTAL
2023 T 2022 Il 2023 | 2022 11 2023 | 2022
Rupees

284,001,907 277,195,209 327,487,534 393,067,552 611,489,441 670,262,761
(241,868,162) (264,135,574) (288,915,566)  (346,386,021) (530,783,728) (610,521,595)
42,133,745 13,059,635 38,571,968 46,681,531 80,705,714 59,741,167
(15,590,779) (10,205,692) (17,977,998) (14,471,847) (33,568,777) (24,677,539)
26,542,967 2,853,943 20,593,970 32,209,685 47,136,937 35,063,628
928,058 6,657,982 6,003,766 2,957,386 6,931,824 9,615,368
(630,030) (263,306) (726,498) (373,373) (1,356,528) (636,679)
(4,213,656) (3,163,326) (8,619,110) (11,249,114) (12,832,766) (14,412,440)
(1,276,524 (845,512) (1,471,982) (1,198,950) (2,748,506) (2,044,462)
21,350,815 5,239,781 15,780,147 22,345,634 37,130,961 27,585,415
(5,271,776) (3,305,636) (6,078,977) (4,687,449)) (11,350,753) (7,993,085)
(735,990) 494,937 (2,970,312) 1,997,466 (3,706,302) 2,492,403
(6,007,767) (2,810,700) (9,049,288) (2,689,982) (15,057,055) (5,500,682)
15,343,048 2,429,081 6,730,858 19,655,651 22,073,906 22,084,733

2023 2022

Rupees Rupees

22,073,905 22,084,733
9,675,000 9,675,000
2.28 2.28
12 1,613,678 5,481,510
17.1 (5,676,309) (5,964,501)
(4,062,631) (482,992)
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30.  REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in the accounts for remuneration, including all benefits to the Chief executive, Director and Executives of the Company are as follows:

2023 2022
Directors Chief Executive || Executives Directors Chief Executive Executives
Rupees

Basic salary 1,432,258 3870968 1,935,484 1,354,839 3,870,968 1,548,387
Allowances 787,742 2129032 1,064,516 745,161 2,129,032 851,613
Company's contribution to provident fund 119,355 322,581 161,290 112,903 322,581 129,032
Medical expenses 125,752 21,115 54,360 112,903 431,134 62,279
Bonus 125,806 322,581 161,290 112,903 322,581 129,032

2,816,720 6,866,276 _ 3,376,941 2,664,516 7,076,296 2,720,344
Number of person(s) 1 1 1 1 1 1

30.1  Asum of Rs. 230,000 (2022: Rs. 184,000) was paid being fee for attending the Board of Directors' meeting.
30.2  Chief executive and Other Executives are provided with free use of Company maintained cars. They are also entitled for medical facility to the extent of reimbursement of
actual expenditure and other benefits in accordance with their terms of employment.
31, TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at commercial terms and conditions. The related parties comprise staff retirement
funds, directors and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties , other than those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are follows:

2023 2022
Balances: Note Rupees Rupees
Provident Fund - outstanding balance 18.1 656,626 395,690
656,626 395,690
Contribution to staff retirement benefit plans 2,635,928 2,314,418
Key I's ion and other benefits 30 13,059,937 12,461,155
Un-audited Audited
31.1. PROVIDENT FUND RELATED DISCLOSURES 2023 2022
The following information is based on latest un-audited financial statements of fund:
Size of the fund - total assets 13,633,584 10,041,442
Percentage of investment made 70.59% 60.69%
Fair value of investments 9,624,059 6,093,842
Cost of above investments 9,854,084 6,076,369
The breakup of fair value of investment is: 2023 2022 2023 2022
Percentage Percentage Rupees Rupees
UBL Money Market Fund 0.00% 28.58% - 1,741,814
NBP Financial Sector Income Fund 42.95% 53.22% 4,133,147 3,243,239
UBL Cash Fund 43.52% 0.00% 4,188,657 -
Investment in Shares 13.53% 18.20% 1,302,255 1,108,789
100.00% 100.00% 9,624,059 6,093,842

31,2 International Knitwear Limited Staff Provident Fund holds the investments which are in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act 2017 and the Rules
formulated for this purpose.
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32

33

31

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalent
Investments

Long term deposits

Trade debts - considered good
Loans and advances

Other receivables

Total Financial Assets

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Lease liability

MTF salary and wages(covid-19) liabilities
Short term finance under mark-up arrangement - Secured
Creditors, accrued and other payables

Total Financial Liabilities

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalent
Investments

Long term deposits

Trade debts - considered good
Loans and advances

Other receivables

Total Financial Assets

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Lease liability

MTF salary and wages(covid-19) liabilities
Short term finance under mark-up arrangement - Secured
Creditors, accrued and other payables

Total Financial Liabilities

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Note

12

10
1

17
18

As at June 30, 2023
Amount in Rupees
At Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Other financial
liabilities
1,613,678 - -
- 20,006,622 20,394,179
1,500,000 - -
38,341,450
2,277,289
9,637,815 - -
53,370,232 20,006,622 20,394,179
28,884,947 -
- 145,444,568
28,884,947 145,444,568
As at June 30, 2022
At Amortised Cost FVTPL FVTOCI Other financial
liabilities
5,481,510 - -
. 17,439,319 20,867,356
2,052,600 - -
144,689,705
1,945,165
777,361 - -
154046341 _ 11439319 __ 2086735
. 1,156,729
5,535,675 -
152,477,501 -
112,643,870

158,013,176

113,800,599

The Board of Directors of the Company have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Company's risk management framework. The Board is also
responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of liquidity risk, credit risk, and market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk). Company's overalls risk
management policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The Company's
credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade debts and balances at banks. Local credit sales are essentially to Khaadi. Receivable from export sales are secured against
letter of credit. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because counter parties are banks with reasonably high credit ratings.
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42

i) Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the date of reporting is as follows:

2023 2022
NOTE Rupees Rupees

Financial assets:
Trade debts 9 38,341,450 144,689,705
Loans and advances 10 24,059,681 11,029,949
Other receivables 11 9,637,815 9,673,404
Cash and bank 12 3,113,678 6,981,510

75,152,625 172,374,569

The trade debts are due from foreign and local customers for export and local sales respectively. Majority of the trade debts from foreign customers are secured against
letters of credit. Management assesses the credit quality of local and foreign customers, taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors. For
bank balances, financial institutions with strong credit ratings are accepted. Credit risk on bank balances is limited as these are placed with banks having good credit
ratings. Loans to employees are secured against their PF balances

The bank balances along with credit ratings are tabulated below:

Bank Name Credit Rating

Bank Al-Habib Limited A1+ 2,678,301 6,866,978
Habib Bank Limited Al+ 14,532 14,532
Bank Alfalah Al+ 47,196 -

Dubai Islamic Bank A1+ 55,523 -

Faysal Bank Limited Al+ 218,127 -

3,013,678 6,881,510

The Company always measures the loss allowance for trade debts at an amount equal to lifetime ECL using the simplified approach. The expected credit losses on local
trade debts are estimated using a provision matrix by reference to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current financial position, adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions of the industry in which the debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date. The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information indicates that the
Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full and it is subsequently written off, if required.

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic and industry factors affect the group of counter parties whose aggregated credit exposure is significant in
relation to the Company's total credit exposure. The Company's financial assets are broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit worthy parties
thereby mitigating any significant concentration risk. Therefore, the Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.

Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the market prices
of securities due to change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and
liquidity in the market.

Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, profit rate risk and other price risk.
(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk
arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.
Financial assets include Rs. 697,599 (2022 : Rs. 71,303,596) which are subject to currency risk.
Sensitivity analysis
The 10 percent strengthening / weakening of Pak Rupee against USD at June 30, 2023 would have (decreased) / increased profit and loss by Rs. 69,760 (2022: Rs.
7,130,360) accordingly. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.
(ii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk represents the risk that are fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The

Company has no long term interest bearing financial assets and liabilities whose fair value or future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates.

However, Company do possess short term interest bearing financial liabilities which includes Rs. 17,174,411 (2022: Rs. 75,625,937) which are subject to interest
rate risk. Applicable interest rate for financial instruments have been indicated in respective notes.




<2 International Knitwear Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through of profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the
reporting date would not affect the statement of profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points in KIBOR / SBP Base Rate, financial liabilities at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) equity and profit or loss by Rs.
0.17 million (2022: Rs. 0.76 million). This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis as in previous year.

(iii)  Other price risk

Price risk represent the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices other than those
arising from interest rate risk or currency risk, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors
affecting all similar financial instrument traded in the market.

333 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining

sufficient cash and cash equivalents. The following are the contractual maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities:

2023
INTEREST/MARK-UP BEARING NON-INTEREST/MARK-UP BEARING
Effective rate of
Maturi Maturi Maturi Maturi
interest %  Range aturity up to aturity after subtotal aturity up to aturity after subtotal Total
% one year one year one year one year
Rupees
Financial assets:
Long term deposits 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
Investments 20,006,622 20,394,179 40,400,801 40,400,801
Trade debts 38,341,450 38,341,450 38,341,450
Other receivables 9,637,815 9,637,815 9,637,815
Cash and bank balances 10.75%- 18.50% 2,571,129 2,571,129 24,422 - 24422 2,795,551
2,571,129 2,571,129 68,210,309 21,894,179 90,104,488 92,675,617
Financial liabilities:
Long term liability against -
assets subject to finance 1year KIBOR+ 2.5%
lease
Short term finance under - 3 Months KIBOR
mark-up arrangement  +2.5% & SBP rate
+1% 28,884,947 28,884,947 - - 28,884,947
Creditors, accrued and - 145,444,568 145,444,568 145,444,568
other payables
Unclaimed dividend - - 1971,571 1971571 1,971,571
28,884,947 28,884,947 147,416,139 147,416,139 176,301,086
Sensitivity gap 26,313,818) - 26,313 818) 79,205,829) 21,894,179 57,311,650) (83,625,469
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2022
INTEREST/MARK-UP BEARING NON-INTEREST/MARK-UP BEARING
Effective rate of
Maturityupto | Maturity aft Maturityupto | Maturity aft Total
interest % / Range Attty upto | Maturtyafer Sub total aturtyupto: | Maturtyahter Sub total o
¥ one year one year one year one year
Rupees
Financial assets:
Long term deposits - - - - - 2,052,600 2,052,600 2,052,600
Long term investments - - - 17,439,319 20,867,356 38,306,675 38,306,675
Trade debts - - - - 144,689,705 - 104,689,705 144,689,705
QOther receivables 9,673,404 - 9,673,404 9,673,404
5.50%10.75% . .
Cash and bank balances 6,789,175 6,789,175 92335 9233 6881510
6,789,175 - 6,789,175 171,894,763 22,919,956 194,814,719 201,603,894
Financial liabilities:
Long term liability against
assets subject to finance 1 year KIBOR+ 2.5% 514,441 642,288 1,156,729 - - - 1,156,729
lease
Short term finance under 3 Months KI30R
+25%&SBPrate 152,477,501 - 152,477,501 - - - 152,477,501
mark-up arrangement i
+
Creditors, accrued and other payables - - - 111,162,376 111,162,376 111,162,376
Unclaimed dividend - - - 1,812,391 - 1,812,391 1,812,391
152,991,942 612,288 153634230  112,974767 . 12,974,767 266,608,997
Sensitivity gap 146,202,767 642,288)  (146,845,055) 58,919,997 22,919,956 81,839,953 (65,005,103)
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33.4 Capital Risk Management
The objective of the Company when managing capital, i.e., its shareholders' equity, is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and to maintain a strong capital base to support the
sustained development of its businesses.
The capital structure of the Company is equity based. It has financed all its projects and business expansions through equity financing and never
resorted on debt financing. However, the Company has availed short-term borrowing for working capital purposes only.

34, FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
As at June 30, 2023, all financial assets and financial liabilities are carried at amortised cost except for investment in mutual funds and equity
securities which are carried at their fair values.
Fair value hierarchy
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value, grouped into
Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices)

Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the transfer has

occurred. The Company's policy for determining when transfers between levels in the hierarchy have occurred includes monitoring of the

following factors:

» changes in market and trading activity (e.g. significant increases / decreases in activity)

» changes in inputs used in valuation techniques (e.g. inputs becoming / ceasing to be observable in the market)

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 or 3 of the fair value hierarchy during the year. The valuation techniques used are as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on Net Asset Values (NAVs) of the units of the mutual funds and share

prices for equity securities at the reporting date. A market is regarded as active when it is a market in which transactions for the asset or liability

take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an on going basis.

The following table analyses within the fair value hierarchy of the Company's financial assets (by class) measured at fair value at June 30, 2023:

2023
Financial Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Investments: Fair Value through profit and loss 40,400,801 - - 40,400,801
2022
Financial Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Investments: Fair Value through profit and loss 38,306,675 - - 38,306,675
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2023 2022
35.  PRODUCTION CAPACITY
Installed capacity (Pcs.) 1,300,000 1,300,000
Actual production (Pcs.) 604,859 915,543

It is difficult to describe precisely the production capacity in the textile industry since it fluctuates widely depending on various factors such as
count of yarn spun, raw material used, etc.
Reasons for shortfall

The short fall in actual production during the year when compared with installed capacity is mainly due to planned maintenance shutdown and
gap between market demand and supply.

36.  NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES 2023 202
Number of employees as on the date of financial statements: 249 270
- Factory employees 121 131
- Other employees 128 139
Average number of employees during the year: 262 275
- Factory employees 133 141
- Other employees 129 134

37.  DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were approved by the board of directors of the Company and authorized for issue on September 27, 2023.

38, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
The Board of Directors in their meeting held on September 27, 2023 has proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 1 per share amounting to Rs.
9,675,000. (2022: Rs. 0.75 per share amounting to Rs. 7,256,250). The approval of the shareholders of the Company shall be obtained at the
upcoming Annual General Meeting for the year ended June 30, 2023. The financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023 do not include
the effect of the proposed final cash dividend.

39.  Corresponding figures
Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of better presentation and comparison. However
no significant reclassification has been made during the year.

40.  FIGURES
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest of rupee.

/ 1o ==

WASEEM SHAFI NAEEM SHAFI JAVED KHAN
Chairman Chief Executive Director/ CFO
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.  The total number of directors are 7 as per the following:

Male: 6 (Six)
Female: 1 (One)

The composition of board is asfollows:

Category Name
Executive Directors Mr.Naeem Shafi
Mr.Javed Khan
Non-Executive Directors Mr.Waseem Shafi
Mr.Muhammad Shafi
Independent Directors Mr. Khalid Jamil Siddiqi
Mr. Abdullah Ashan Saleem
Ms. Saleha Majid
Female Director Ms.Saleha Majid

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company.

The Company has prepared a “Code of Conduct” and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and some
significant policies of the Company. The board is doing a reasonable progress to complete record
of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or
amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board/shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director
elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the
Board.

The Board of Director shave a for mail policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

9. Two directors are Certified Director and two directors meet the criteria of exemption and are
accordingly exempted from directors’ training program. Remaining Director will acquire the
required directors’ training certification within the time specified in the Regulations.

10. The board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary, including
their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant
requirements of the regulations. However, the Chief Financial Officer has also been as signed the
responsibilities of the company secretary;

The position of Head of Internal Audit remained vacant during the year

11.  Chief Financial Officer and Chief executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:
Audit Committee

Khalid Jamil Siddiqi Chairman (Independent Director)
Abdullah Ahsan Saleem Member
Saleha Majid Member

HR and Remuneration Committee

Abdullah Ahsan Saleem Chairman (Independent Director)
Saleha Majid Member
Muhammad Shafi Member

13. Theterms of reference of the a for e said committees have been formed,documented and
advised to the committee for compliance

14. The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:
a) Audit Committee: Four quarterly meetings during the financial year ended June 30, 2022
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: One meeting during the financial year ended June 30,
2022
15. The Board has not yet setup an internal audit function as required by regulation 31 of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Over sight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are
in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as
adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of
the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit,
company secretary or director of the company;
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

17.  The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18.  We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 360f the Regulations
have been complied with; and

19.  Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations3, 6, 7, 8,27,32,33
and 36 are below.

The Chief Financial Officer also holds the office of the company secretary.

The Company will hire Company Secretary as required by the Regulation of the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 as soon as the cash flow
allows to bear an additional cost.

Company have not setup the Internal Audit Function.

The Company will setup the Internal Audit Function and will hire head of Internal Audit as
required by the Regulation 31 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 as soon as the cash flow allows to bear an additional cost.

The board has not maintained the complete record of significant policies as required under
the regulations.

During the year a significant progress has been made by the Company to maintain
complete record of various significant policies. However the remaining Compliance will be
complete by the year end June 30, 2024.

v/

WASEEM SHAFI

Karachi: September 27,2023 Chairman
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED "M A2 yder iooat Nawmen
REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES 7 et P, emumont ot
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019 ket 73550 pakiian

T: +92(21) 35655975-6
F: +92(21)3565-5977

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
International Knitwear Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2023 in accordance with
the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status
of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and
to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by
the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of
Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the
year ended June 30, 2023.
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RSM

RSM Avais Hyder Liaguat Nauman

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF INTERNATIONAL KNITWEAR LIMITED Chartered Accountants
REVIEW REPORT ON THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES
(CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

Further, we highlight below instances of non-compliance with the requirement(s) of the
Regulations as reflected in the paragraph reference where these are stated in the Statement of
Compliance:

S# Paragraph Description
reference

The Chief Financial Officer also holds the office of the
l. 10 & 19(1) company secretary.

The Board has not setup an internal audit function as required
I 15 & 19(1) by regulation 31 of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019.

The board has not maintained the complete record of
1. 5&19(11) significant policies as required under the regulations.

Chartered Accountants
Karachi.

Date: October 04, 2023
UDIN:CR202310239E0120lFaU
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is here by given that the 33" Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held
on Friday, October 27, 2023, at 03:45 p.m. at F-2A/L, S.I.T.E, Karachi to transact the following
business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To confirm the minutes of the 32nd Annual General Meeting held on October 27,
2022.

2. To receive, consider and approve the audited financial statements of the Company
together with Director’s and Auditor’s Reports for the year ended June 30, 2023.

3. To declare and approve the final cash dividend of PKR 1.00 (10 %) per shareas
recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended June 30, 2023.

4. To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending June30, 2024. The

present Auditors, M/s.RSM Avais Hyder Liaquat Nauman, Chartered Accountants, retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

=T

JAVED KHAN
Company Secretaory

Karachi: October 05, 2023

52




<% International Knitwear Limited
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed for the period from

October 21, 2023, to October 27, 2023 (both days inclusive).

Members are requested to immediately notify the change in their addresses if any to

Shares Registrar:

M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S,

Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi

Customer Support Service Nos: +92-080023275

E-mail: info@cdcsrsl.com

3. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this meeting, may appoint
another member ashis/her proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her.Proxies, in
order to be effective, must be received by the Company at the above said addresses
,not less than 48hours before the meeting.

4. CDC Account holders will further have to observe the following guidelines, as laid down
in Circular 01 dated January 20, 2000, issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan:

a) For Attending Meeting:

i) In the case of an individual, the account holder or sub-account holder, and/or the
person whose securities are in a group account and their registration details are
uploaded as per the regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by showing
his/her original National Identity Card (CNIC), or original passport at the time of
attending the meeting.

i) In the case of the corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of
attorney, along with thespecimen signature of the nominee, shall be produced
(unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the meeting.

N

b) For Appointing Proxies:

i) In the case of an individual, the account holder or sub-account holder, and/or the
person whose securities are in a group account and whose registration details are
uploaded as per the regulations, shall submit the proxy for mas per the above
requirements.

i) Two persons, whose names, addresses, and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on
the form, shall witness the proxy.

iii) Attested copies of CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and proxy shall be
furnished along with the proxy form.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

iv) The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the
meeting.

v) In the case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of
attorney, along with the specimen signature of the nominee, shall be produced
(unless it has been provided earlier) along with the proxy form to the Company.

5. Notice to Share holders who have not provided CNIC:

CNIC of the share holders is mandatory in term sofa directive of the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan contained in S.R.0. 831(1)/2012 dated July 05,2012,
for the is suance of future dividend warrants etc. and in the absence of such
information, payment of dividend may be with held in term of SECP’s above-mentioned
directive. Therefore, the shareholders who have not yet provided their CNICs are once
again advised to provide the attested copies of their CNICs directly to our Shares
Registrar with out any further delay.

6. Mandate for E-DIVIDENDS for shareholders:

In order to make the process of payment of cash dividends more efficient, the e-
dividend mechanism has been envisaged where shareholders can get the amount of
dividends credited into their respective bank accounts electronically with out any delay.
In this way, dividends may be instantly credited to respective bank accounts and there
are no changes of dividend warrants getting lost in the post,undelivered or delivered to
the wrong address, etc. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
through Notice No. 8(4) SM/CDC 2008 dated April 5, 2013, had advised all Listed
Companies to adopt the e-dividend mechanism due to the benefits it entails for
shareholders. In view ofthe above, you are hereby encouraged to provide a dividend
mandate in favour of e-dividend by providing a dividend mandate form duly filled in
and signed.

7. Electronic Transmission of Financial Statements Etc.:

SECP through its notification No. SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014, has
allowed companies to circulate Annual Audited Financial Statements along with a
Notice of Annual General Meeting through email instead of sending the same through
post, to those members who desire to avail this facility. The members who desire to opt
to receive a fore said statements and notice of AGM through e-mail are requested to
send  their  written consent to the Company’s email address:
javed@internationalknitwear.com,the audited financial statements of the Company for
the year ended June 30,2023 have been made available on the Company’s website:
http://www.internationalknitwear.com
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

# Of Shareholders | Shareholdings'Slab | Total Shares Held |
278 1 to 100 7,674
220 101 to 500 57,462
616 501 to 1000 347,405
81 1001 to 5000 194,118

20 5001 to 10000 149,477
12 10001 to 15000 150,235
6 15001 to 20000 103,264
7 20001 to 25000 153,256
1 25001 to 30000 29,000
1 35001 to 40000 39,468
2 40001 to 45000 87,500
1 45001 to 50000 49,718
1 50001 to 55000 53,750
1 65001 to 70000 65,041
1 85001 to 90000 87,000
1 130001 to 135000 132,225
1 155001 to 160000 158,500
1 200001 to 205000 201,158
1 205001 to 210000 210,000
1 365001 to 370000 368,571
1 405001 to 410000 408,875
1 420001 to 425000 425,000
1 425001 to 430000 430,000
1 535001 to 540000 537,473
1 640001 to 645000 641,694
1 830001 to 835000 832,153
1 860001 to 865000 863,500
1 970001 to 975000 972,400
1 1915001 to 1920000 1,919,083
1262 9,675,000
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse(s) and minor children

WASEEM SHAFI 4 65,912 0.68
NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 2 1,919,120 19.84
JAVED KHAN 2 8,089 0.08
MUHAMMAD SHAFI 1 425,000 4.39
KHALID JAMIL SIDDIQI 1 5,000 0.05
ABDULLAH AHSAN SALEEM 1 10,000 0.10
SALEHA MAIID 1 750 0.01
BUSHRA SHAFI 2 7,870 0.08
HUMAIRA SHAFI 2 972,500 10.05
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties - - -
NIT & ICP - -
Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Financial Institutions. 1 67 0.00
Insurance Companies 1 158,500 1.64
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 2 1,042,153 10.77
General Public
a. Local 1,233 5,022,005 5191
b. Foreign 3 2,500 0.03
Foreign Companies - - -
Others 6 35,534 0.37
Totals 1,262 9,675,000 100.00
Share holders holding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage
NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 1,919,120 19.84
HUMAIRA SHAFI 972,500 10.05

56




<2 International Knitwear Limited

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

S.No. Folio # Name of shareholder Number of shares Percentage%
Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse(s) and minor children
1 1 WASEEM SHAFI 39,468 0.41
2 3025 WASEEM SHAFI 3,765 0.04
3 03277-122587  WASEEM A SHAFI 15,000 0.16
4 03277-39281 WASEEM A.SHAFI 7,679 0.08
5 520 NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 37 0.00
6 03277-44659 NAEEM AHMED SHAFI 1,919,083 19.84
7 2982 JAVED KHAN 1,500 0.02
8 10629-132285 JAVED KHAN 6,589 0.07
9 05512-111016 MUHAMMAD SHAFI| 425,000 4.39
10 01826-48207 KHALID JAMIL sSIDDIQI 5,000 0.05
11 03277-98584 ABDULLAH AHSAN SALEEM 10,000 0.10
12 3057 SALEHA MAJID 750 0.01
13 20 BUSHRA SHAFI 3,870 0.04
14 11387-19144 BUSHRA SHAFI 4,000 0.04
15 19 HUMAIRA SHAFI 100 0.00
16 03277-97487 HUMAIRA SHAFI 972,400 10.05
16 3,414,241 35.29
A d undertakings and related parties
Nil -
) - -
NIT& ICP
Nil -
0 - -
Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Financial Institutions.
1 03889-28 NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN 67 0.00
1 67 0.00
Insurance Companies
1 02139-29 PREMIER INSURANCE LIMITED 158,500 1.64
1 158,500 1.64
Modarabas and Mutual Funds
1 02113-21 FIRST EQUITY MODARABA 210,000 217
2 03277-1651 FIRST UDL MODARABA 832,153 8.60
2 1,042,153 10.77
General Public Foreign
1 03277-107401 MUHAMMAD WASEEM ASLAM 1,000 0.01
2 03277-110031 MUHAMMAD NADEEM 1,000 0.01
3 03277-114373 MUDASSAR ZULFIQAR 500 0.01
3 2,500 0.03
Foreign Companies
Nil -
0 - -
Others
1 2976 THE COMPANY SECRETARY 472 0.00
2 02113-3611 First UDL Modaraba Staff Provident Fund 3,750 0.04
3 03277-78335 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMPLOYEES PENSION FUND 10,893 0.11
4 03277-82127 TRUSTEE NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN EMP BENEVOLENT FUND TRUST 382 0.00
5 04341-3265 RAO SYSTEMS (PVT.) LTD. 19,500 0.20
6 05728-24 STOCK STREET (PRIVATE) LIMITED 537 0.01
6 35,534 0.37
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FORM OF PROXY
33rd ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

I/'We— son/daughter/wife/husband of , Shareholder of

International Knitwear Limited, holding__ ordinary shares hereby appoint
whoismy__ [state relationship (if any) with the proxy; required by Government
regulations] and the son / daughter / wife / husbandof —(holding

ordinary shares in the Company under FolioNo.— ) [required by Government] as my
/ our proxy, to attend and vote for me /us and on my / our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of

the Company to be held on October 27th, 2023 and / or any adjournment thereof.

Signed this day of 2023.
Folio CDC Participant CDC Account/ No. of
No. ID No. Sub-Account No.|  Shares held
Signature over
Revenue Stamp
Rs.10/-
Witness 1 Witness 2
Signature Signature
Name Name
CNIC No. CNIC No.
Address Address

Notes: 1.  The proxy must be a member of the Company.

2. Thesignature must tally with the specimen signature/s registered with the company.

3. Ifaproxy is granted by a member who has deposited his/her shares in CDC Share
Registrar Services Limited , the proxy must be accompanied with
participant’s ID number and CDC account/sub-account number along with attasted
photocopies of Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or the Passport of the
beneficial owner. Representatives of corporate members should bring the usual
documents required for such purpose.

4. The instrument of Proxy properly completed should be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.
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Intetnational Knitwear Limited
F-2A/L, S.I.T.E., Karachi-75730 Pakistan
Phones: 32571463, 32574302-04
Fax: (021) 32564414
Web : www.internationalknitwear.com



